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The Rhodes-Haverty Building is a twenty-one-story office building with a 
trapezoidal floor plan. The primary exterior material is buff-colored brick, 
with a granite base and terra cotta trim at the upper floors and spandrels. 
The trim is primarily geometrical in pattern. The building is of steel-frame 
construction. ...,-,

The exterior is a fairly simple tri-part design. The lower three floors < 
provide a base. The center bays of the shaft are pulled forward with slightly 
recessed spandrels to create a vertical feeling. Rather than a typical Beaux 
Arts interpretation like the adjacent Candler Building, <Priiigle and Smith 
opted for a unique Romanesque temple fonnto cap the uppermost floors. The top 
-three floors, delimited by a chevron stringcourse,.give way to,what is essen­ 
tially a Romanesque temple front complete with corbeled;arches gripping over 
the pediment and roof line."- -Mixed wfth more geometric detailing and-even a 
monster cornice of egg-and-dart moulding, the decorative rounded arches and 
projecting pediment are repeated on three facades.

The original lobby had a travertine floor with mosaic inlay. The eleva­ 
tor lobby walls remain in travertine. The typical office-floor corridor is a 
T-shape within the trapezoidal form. Four elevators and one exit stair are 
provided.

Some modernization, -including air-conditioning, took place when the Geor­ 
gia Properties Company assumed ownership in 1946. Elevators are still oper­ 
ated using the original equipment'wfth the1 addition of a computerized control 
system which replaces an elevatgr,operator. The ^eating.plant is also ori­ 
ginal "and slated for renewal 'in the next year.' The first-floor lobby was 
remodeled in 1967 for the Brooks Brothers clothing store.... .Originally, it was 
similar to the William Oliver Building, built in 1930, and featured cast bronze 
elevator doors and inlay floors. -.,. ,..., . :

The appearance of the lower three floors has been altered with the addi­ 
tion of a stone veneer in the 1960s. The canopies over the Peachtree Street 
and Forsyth Street entrances have been removed. The entrance-doors have been 
replaced, but the original frames are intact. The present owners intend to 
modernize the heating, cooling and electrical systems, as well as restore cer­ 
tain of the structure's original interior features.
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The Rhodesmaverty Building is significant to the history of Atlanta for 
several reasons. The building represents a transition in skyscraper develop­ 
ment in Atlanta from the.Beaux Arts eclecticism to the later completely;modern 
forms-. It Was : Atlanta's ̂ tanes't skyscrspr from r1^29ruHtn n the; ^Bmptetiofi of 
the Fulton NatiortaT Bank l fh i'T954. : Tt was* desired By'Pringli & $m'ith? r a prom­ 
inent architectural firm of the period, and designers of awny other major 
Atlanta buildings. The building was developed by A.G. Rhodes and J.0. Haverty 
who were very prominent Atlanta citizens of the period.

Planning for the Rhodes-Haverty Building began some years before actual 
construction. The Rhodes-Haverty Investment Company petitioned the mayor and 
General Council of Atlanta in 1924 to definitely fix the location of the 
boundaries of the site bordered by Peachtree Street, James Street (now Wil­ 
liams Street), and Forsyth Street and approve a copy of "Sanders Map" for use 
in obtaining a loan "to erect on said premises a modern, up-to-date, fire­ 
proof office building; the cost of'same 4 tb be ( between 1 Severn Hundred drid Ftfjfcy 
Thousand ($750,000 9 OQJ Dollars." This was adopted and then approved by M^yor 
Walter A. Sims on May 23/1924. ~Ah Application for'Buildfhg'PerriHt^as made 
October 6,.1928,-by Southern Ferro Concrete Company, and construction began 
shortly thereafter1 and took approximately one year. The'estimated cost listed 
on the building permit was $622,000. The architect's records show a final con­ 
struction cost of $723,812.60, or $5.90 per square foot for 134,648 square 
feet.

The property had been assembled by the Rhodes-Haverty Investment Company, 
a Georgia corporation organized by A.G. Rhodes and J.J. Haverty. A.G. Rhodes 
was president of the corporation, and JJJ. Haverty was vice president, but 
Rhodes died a few months before construction began. The building was sold to 
Georgia Properties Company in 1946 and then sold again in 1972 to Shouky A. 
Shaheen. The Rhodes-Haverty Partnership, a limited partnership with Arthur 
Rubloff & Company, purchased the building in May of 1978 for approximately 
$1,800,000.

The architectural firm of Pringle & Smith designed the building. Francis 
P. Smith attended the University of Pennsylvania, where he studied under an 
Ecole des Beaux Arts architect, Paul Cret. He moved to Atlanta in 1909 and 
was chairman of the architecture department at Georgia Institute of Technology
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until 1922. He then became a partner with R.S. Pringle, an already-established 
Atlanta architect who had earlier worked for W.T. Downing.

An article in the October, 1928 issue of The City Builder states. "Accord­ 
ing to the architects, it will be of distinct American design, one that will 
be an unusually handsome landmark for the upper Peachtree Street section. The 
ground floor on the street frontages will be devoted to store space ... Four 
elevators will be installed, of the most modern type in any office building 
south of New York. Three will be for passenger traffic, equipped with flying 
stops, push button devices, high speed arrangements and complete safety." The 
article then adds, "The owners feel that beauty should be combined with util­ 
ity," and quotes Mr. Haverty as saying, "thereby developing standards of cul­ 
ture in architecture which will represent the energy, imagination and aspira­ 
tions of the American spirit ... Atlanta is looked upon as the center of cul­ 
ture in the South, and in this new building is to be illustrated that spirit 
of culture which belongs todthe South."

The depression had just struck other parts of the nation when the Rhodes- 
Haverty Building opened in October, 1929. Atlanta, on the other hand, was 
enjoying a period of tremendous prosperity. In 1929, the million-dollar City 
Hall, a gothic tower, was finished. The magnificent Fox Theater, now a 
National Historic Landmark, was opened. Southern Bell's impressive art deco 
headquarters was begun in 1929, and Candler Field, Atlanta's young airport, 
was the third-largest air transportation center behind New York and Chicago 
by the end of 1930. One month after the depression hit, Atlanta became the 
home of the largest financial institution south of Philadelphia. Robert W. 
Woodruff brought about a three-bank merger and helped create the First 
National Batok.

Among other major Atlanta buildings designed by Pringle & Smith during 
this period were the Carl ton Apartments (Cox-Carl ton Hotel), 1925; the Norris 
Building, 1930; and the W.W. Orr Doctors Building, 1930-31. These seem to 
represent the end of an era. Once high-rise construction*of office build­ 
ings started again after the Depression and World War II, the style had 
changed to a completely modern one.

The architects were praised by an article in the October, 1928 issue of 
The City Builder, which stated that a commission from the National Association
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of Building Owners and Managers which conferred with the architects and 
reviewed the plans before completion "unanimously complimented the architects 
by saying that the plans submitted to the commission were in every way the 
most perfect set of office-building plans that had come under their observa­ 
tion."

Amos G. Rhodes came to Atlanta after the Civil War'"as a poor young Ken­ 
tucky farm boy" and "earned a sizable fortune through the operation of a 
chain of medium-price furniture stores." He built the Rhodes Memorial Hall, 
now on the National Register. The August, 1929 issue of The City Builder 
credits him with originating the installment plan of selling furniture. He 
owned numerous properties and was involved with many companies, including 
"A.G. Rhodes & Son, operators of 22 retail furniture stores throughout the 
Southeast." He also contributed generously to the construction of the Peach- 
tree Christian Church, the Home for Incurables and the Home for Old Ladies 
in Atlanta. Rhodes died in June of 1928.

James Joseph Haverty was born in Atlanta in 1858. In 1885, he organized 
J.J. Haverty and Company, which sold furniture. He was a member of the firm 
of Rhodes and Haverty from 1889 until 1909. Civic endeavors included being 
chairman of the Art Commission of the City of Atlanta; chairman of the board 
of trustees of the High Museum of Art in Atlanta; and regional director of 
the Fifth Region, Civil Works of Art Project, under the Art Section of the 
Federal Treasury Department. He was awarded a "Certificate of Distinguished 
Achievement" by the Atlanta Chamber of Commerce in 1930 for his interest and 
activities in promoting an appreciation of the fine arts in Atlanta.

In summary, the Rhodes-Haverty Building is significant for its design, 
its designers, and its developers. It is an important building in Atlanta's 
architectural history.
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Interviews with Mr. Pierce Jones, May 29, 1977, and 

Mr. Henry H. Smith, June 1, 1977.
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